

Linfield College DigitalCommons@Linfield

Senior Theses

Student Scholarship & Creative Works

5-18-2016

Modeling a Circuit that Represents an Electrolytic Solution at Different Concentrations

Daniel C. Miller II Linfield College

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.linfield.edu/physstud_theses

Part of the Biological and Chemical Physics Commons

Recommended Citation

Miller, Daniel C. II, "Modeling a Circuit that Represents an Electrolytic Solution at Different Concentrations" (2016). *Senior Theses*. 24. https://digitalcommons.linfield.edu/physstud_theses/24

This Thesis (Open Access) is protected by copyright and/or related rights. It is brought to you for free via open access, courtesy of DigitalCommons@Linfield, with permission from the rights-holder(s). Your use of this Thesis (Open Access) must comply with the Terms of Use for material posted in DigitalCommons@Linfield, or with other stated terms (such as a Creative Commons license) indicated in the record and/or on the work itself. For more information, or if you have questions about permitted uses, please contact digitalcommons@linfield.edu.

Modeling a Circuit that Represents an Electrolytic Solution at Different Concentrations

Daniel C. Miller II

 $Linfield\ College$

May 18th, 2016



THESIS COPYRIGHT PERMISSIONS

Please read this document carefully before signing. If you have questions about any of these permissions, please contact the DigitalCommons Coordinator.

Title of the Thesis:

Modeling a Circuit + nut Represents an Electrolytic Solution at Pifferent Concentrations

Author's Name: (Last name, first name)

Darietas, Miller II. Daniel

Advisor's Name

Dr. Michael Crosser

DigitalCommons@Linfield is our web-based, open access-compliant institutional repository for digital content produced by Linfield faculty, students, staff, and their collaborators. It is a permanent archive. By placing your thesis in DigitalCommons@Linfield, it will be discoverable via Google Scholar and other search engines. Materials that are located in DigitalCommons@Linfield are freely accessible to the world; however, your copyright protects against unauthorized use of the content. Although you have certain rights and privileges with your copyright, there are also responsibilities. Please review the following statements and identify that you have read them by signing below. Some departments may choose to protect the work of their students because of continuing research. In these cases, the project is still posted in the repository but content will only be accessible by individuals who are part of the Linfield community.

CHOOSE THE STATEMENT BELOW THAT DEFINES HOW YOU WANT TO SHARE YOUR THESIS. THE FIRST STATEMENT PROVIDES THE MOST ACCESS TO YOUR WORK; THE LAST STATEMENT PROVIDES THE LEAST ACCESS.

I agree to make my thesis available to the Linfield College community and to the larger scholarly community upon its deposit in our permanent digital archive, DigitalCommons@Linfield, or its successor technology. My thesis will also be available in print at Nicholson Library and can be shared via interlibrary loan.

OR

I agree to make my thesis available <u>only</u> to the Linfield College community upon its deposit in our permanent digital archive, DigitalCommons@Linfield, or its successor technology. My thesis will also be available in print at Nicholson Library and can be shared via interlibrary loan.

OR

_____ I agree to make my thesis available in print at Nicholson Library, including access for interlibrary loan.

OR

agree to make my thesis available in print at Nicholson Library only.

Updated April 2, 2012

NOTICE OF ORIGINAL WORK AND USE OF COPYRIGHT-PROTECTED MATERIALS:

If your work includes images that are not original works by you, you must include permissions from original content provider or the images will not be included in the repository. If your work includes videos, music, data sets, or other accompanying material that is not original work by you, the same copyright stipulations apply. If your work includes interviews, you must include a statement that you have the permission from the interviewees to make their interviews public. For information about obtaining permissions and sample forms, see http://copyright.columbia.edu/copyright/permissions/.

NOTICE OF APPROVAL TO USE HUMAN SUBJECTS BY THE LINFIELD COLLEGE INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH BOARD (IRB):

If your research includes human subjects, you must include a letter of approval from the Linfield IRB. For more information, see http://www.linfield.edu/irb/.

NOTICE OF SUBMITTED WORK AS POTENTIALLY CONSTITUTING AN EDUCATIONAL RECORD UNDER FERPA:

Under FERPA (20 U.S.C. § 1232g), this work may constitute an educational record. By signing below, you acknowledge this fact and expressly consent to the use of this work according to the terms of this agreement.

BY SIGNING THIS FORM, I ACKNOWLEDGE THAT ALL WORK CONTAINED IN THIS PAPER IS ORIGINAL WORK BY ME OR INCLUDES APPROPRIATE CITATIONS AND/OR PERMISSIONS WHEN CITING OR INCLUDING EXCERPTS OF WORK(S) BY OTHERS.

IF APPLICABLE, I HAVE INCLUDED AN APPROVAL LETTER FROM THE IRB TO USE HUMAN SUBJECTS.

Signature	Signature redacted	Date	6/29/16
	3		

Printed Name Daniel Millecul

Approved by Faculty Advisor Signature redacted Date 6/29/2016

Updated April 2, 2012

Thesis research submitted to:

The Department of Physics

 at

LINFIELD COLLEGE

in

McMinnville, Oregon

with partial fulfillment

of the requirements for the degree of

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE IN APPLIED PHYSICS

MAY 2016

Thesis Acceptance Linfield College

Thesis Title: Modeling a Circuit that Represents an Electrolytic Solution at Different Concentrations

Submitted by: Daniel C. Miller II

Date Submitted: May 18, 2016

Thesis Advisor: <u>Signature redacted</u> Dr. Michael Crosser

Physics Department: <u>Signature redacted</u> Dr. Tianbao Xie

5

Physics Department: _____ Signature redacted Dr. William Mackie

Contents

Abstra	ıct	5
Dedica	tion	6
I. Intro	oduction	7
	The Model and the Used Components	8
	Screening Length of a Capacitor	10
II. Exp	perimental Methods	12
	The Lock-In Amplifier	13
	The Constructed Device	16
	The Electrolytes and their Concentrations	18
III. Th	leory	20
	Impedance of the Model through the Lock-In Amplifier $\ . \ . \ . \ .$	20
	Measuring the Impedance of the Electric Double Layer Circuit $\ . \ . \ .$	22
IV. Re	sults and Analysis	24
	The Controlled System	24
	Electrolyte Concentration of Distilled Water	26
	Electrolyte Concentration of 0.05 mM	26
	Electrolyte Concentration of 0.50 mM	27
	Electrolyte Concentration of 5.00 mM	27
	Electrolyte Concentration of 50.0 mM	28
	Electrolyte Concentration of 500 mM	28

Resistance and Capacitance of each Electrolyte Concentration \ldots	31
V. Conclusion and Future Work	33
References	34
Acknowledgements	
Appendix	37
Block Diagram of Lock-In Amplifier	37

Abstract

Electrodes are often placed within bio samples in order to measure the electrical changes that occur within a system. In order to understand the information provided through the microelectrodes, this paper will describe an experiment to measure the capacitance and the resistance between two micro electrodes as an electrolyte becomes more concentrated. This resulted a capacitance and a resistance that increased and decreased exponentially, respectively, as an electrolyte concentration increased logarithmically.

Dedication

I would like to dedicate this to my father, Daniel C. Miller, and my mother, Dorothy G. Miller, for greatly supporting me through my four years at Linfield College. If it were not for them, I would not be here studying this research today. I also would like to mention my younger brother, Michael A. Miller, who, at this time, has recently started at a university and I wish him the best of luck to pursue his passion.

I. Introduction

The main purpose of this experiment is to find the basic characteristics of an electrolyte solution. These results can be compared to many different scenarios. For example, biosensors is a small tool that measures a wide variety of living organisms. We can model these organisms as an electrolyte because the way it behaves can be controlled directly. For example, lactate levels found in blood can be measured using a biosensor^[1]. Blood must be drawn from a person, which can then be tested to measure the levels of lactate by microelectrodes with an AC signal flowing through the system. Blood is known to be an electrolyte, but one that has fixed values that differ from person-to-person and is difficult to obtain. Instead, we can substitute blood with water that contains different levels of a salt concentration. This can then be constructed into a model (Fig. 1) that can be translated into a circuit that consists of resistors and capacitors.

A resistor is a basic circuit element that reduces an electrical current that flows through a system. A capacitor, in contrast to a resistor, stores energy that depends on the charge and the voltage applied. These two components can be used to create an infinite number of functional circuits that can be used in many different ways. With this knowledge we can model a circuit that represents an electrolyte any information that it may hold. The physical circuit can be controlled by the user and can also be used to modify and match other biological systems that may be used for future experiments.

The Model and the Used Components

Figure 1 is a basic representation of how an electrolyte will be tested.



Figure 1: Basic diagram of the device, (a) tungsten probes, (b) an electrolyte, (c) teflon chamber

From Fig. 1, a device has been constructed to represent an electrolyte through a network of resistors and capacitors^[2] (Fig. 2).



Figure 2: Complete circuit diagram based off Fig. 1, (a) a tungsten probe connected to a sine signal, (b) a grounded tungsten probe connected to a lock-in amplifier for data measurement.

Figure 2 shows the overall circuit diagram of how the system will work. There will be a brief description of what needs to be known in this figure. To get results, an AC signal from a lock-in amplifier (Fig. 7) will be applied to the system with a certain frequency, f.



Figure 3: Electric double layer circuit in series with an external resistance, R_s.

A double layer circuit (Fig. 3) has been created to represent the probes in contact with an electrolyte. A double layer circuit consists of a resistor, R, and capacitor, C, in parallel that is in series with an external resistance, R_s . The external resistance is known to be the overall resistance of the electrolyte itself.

The first component within the double layer circuit is a resistor (Fig. 3). This can be modeled from a rare reaction called a redox reaction that takes place inside an electrolyte and the metal probe. Electrons reside inside of the metal when an electric current flows through. Ions is what makes up current inside an electrolyte. In order to complete the circuit, the electron must convert itself into an ion, which is why this reaction is best represented as a resistor^[3], which then leads us to the next component.

The second component inside of an double layer circuit is a capacitor. In between the probe and an electrolyte houses a separation of charges (Fig. 4) and within it are considered to be two parallel plates^[4].



Figure 4: Parallel-plate capacitor, (a) tungsten probe, (b) ions in electrolyte, (c) parallel plates

The charge of a capacitor, Q, undergoes a change in current signal, I, and phase shift, Θ , as it travels through the plates. This can be written as,

$$Q = \int I dt = I_0 \int \sin(\omega t + \theta) dt = -\frac{I_0}{\omega} \cos(\omega t).$$
(1)

where I_0 is the amplitude of the current and where ω is equal to,

$$\omega = 2\pi f. \tag{2}$$

The charge traveling through the plates is stored, therefore, resulting in,

$$C = \frac{Q}{V}.$$
(3)

where V is the set voltage through the system.

Since we are working with an electrolyte, we will be taking the capacitance into another direction. Since there are ions present inside an electrolyte, due to a dissolved salt, this is where the screening length comes in.

Screening Length of a Capacitor

The screening length is the process of an electrical charge from an electron in the metal that travels in an electrolyte only for the electric field to be screened or blocked by an ion that occupies a set amount of space. This is where a redox reaction takes place.



Figure 5: Screening length of an electrolyte solution, (a) a highly-concentrated electrolyte, (b) a weakly-concentrated electrolyte.

Figure 5 shows us two different electrolytes each with a different concentration represented as small circles. The gap width, w, shown in Fig. 5 represents a space that houses the same number of ions. In Fig. 5a the gap is noticeably smaller compared to Fig. 5b. As an electric charge flows through the electrolyte, the charge is screened out inside the gap width, leaving excess space for the remaining charge to flow through. Think of it as a bridge. The wider the bridge the faster one can travel over it. If there are many people trying to cross a single narrow one, it is going to take much longer to move across. To translate the screening length of a capacitor into an equation, we get,

$$C = \frac{\epsilon A}{w} \tag{4}$$

where ϵ is the permittivity of free space and A is the measured area of the electrolyte in a given space. ^[5].

II. Experimental Methods

We will be explaining the hardware used throughout this experiment. Figure 2 represents a circuit diagram of what the entire system consists of.



Figure 6: Schematic of the experiment, (a) lock-in amplifier, (b) LabView program, (c) the device holding an electrolyte (Fig. 1).

Figure 6 is a schematic of the experimental setup. Figure 6a is a lock-in amplifier, Fig. 6b is the LabView computer program for recording the data from a lock-in amplifier, and Fig. 6c is a drawing of the device that will be shown in Fig. 9. Each of these will be described throughout the experimental methods section.

The Lock-In Amplifier

This first device that will be described is a lock-in amplifier (Fig. 6a).



Figure 7: A lock-in amplifier displays of (a) the real current, (b) the imaginary current, (c) the frequency being used with amplitude of 0.02 V, (d) the lock-in output to the constructed device, (e) the AC signal measured after being in contact with the model, (f) the sensitivity, (g) the time constant.

A lock-in amplifier (Fig. 7) is used to detect and measure small AC signals^[6]. What makes this device so special is that it can block out any unnecessary signals, such as noise, that may obscure the data being recorded.

In order to reduce external noise, a lock-in amplifier uses a process called phasesensitive detection (PSD). Suppose that there is some AC signal output with some square wave reference signal that may be synchronized with the output in a function generator that is provided (Fig. 7e),

$$v_r(t) = V_{sig} sin(\omega_r t + \theta_{sig}) \tag{5}$$

where $v_r(t)$ is the reference amplitude over time, V_{sig} is the initial amplitude signal, ω_r is the reference frequency, and Θ_{sig} is the signal phase shift.

The lock-in is then able to generate its own signal in the form of a sine wave, this can be written out as (Fig. 7d),

$$v_L(t) = V_L sin(\omega_L t + \theta_{ref}) \tag{6}$$

where $v_L(t)$ is the final lock-in amplitude over time, V_L is the initial lock-in signal amplitude, ω_L is the lock-in frequency, and Θ_{ref} is the lock-in reference.

The lock-in will then take the output signal from Eq. 5 and the reference signal from Eq. 6 and will multiply the two together resulting in a function while making the assumption that an experiment is occupied by a specific frequency,

$$V_{PSD} = \frac{1}{2} V_{sig} V_L \cos([\omega_r - \omega_L]t + \theta_{sig} - \theta_{ref}) - \frac{1}{2} V_{sig} V_L \cos([\omega_r + \omega_L]t + \theta_{sig} + \theta_{ref})$$
(7)

There are two outputs of the PSD. One that includes the sum between the frequencies and the other that includes the difference between the frequencies. These frequencies go through a low-pass filter which will ultimately remove these signals. The result is that there is nothing left, but if ω_r is equal to ω_L , a DC signal will be left which will leave us with,

$$V_{PSD} = \frac{1}{2} V_{sig} V_L \cos(\theta_{sig} - \theta_{ref})$$
(8)

This is the signal that is recorded with minimal noise distortion. To acquire these data from a lock-in amplifier, we will be using an application on a computer called LabView. It is a program that one can use manually to record data efficiently and accurately.



Figure 8: LabView computer program used to record data, (a) lock-in amplitude, (b) initial frequency, (c) ending frequency, (d) number of data points per decade of frequency, (e) data information, (f) units for impedance, (g) graph of real impedance, (h) graph of imaginary impedance.

In LabView, one can input an initial low frequency up to a certain maximum. The lowest and highest frequencies a lock-in amplifier can record is 0.01 Hz and 100 kHz, respectively. However, this application is not a necessity, it only makes the data collection process easier and more efficient.

The Constructed Device

The lock-in amplifier is then connected to a physical device which consists of two tungsten probes connected to a copper wire placed vertically into a teflon chamber where an electrolytic of some concentration is held.



Figure 9: A close-up of the constructed model, (a) is the first tungsten probe, (b) is the second tungsten probe, (c) is the chamber where an electrolyte is held, (d) and (e) represent the lead from end to the lock-in, respectively.

The output signal from the lock-in flows through one of the probes, into an electrolyte, then back through the grounded probe which flows back to the lock-in amplifier for it to take measurements through LabView (Fig. 8).

A signal at amplitude of 20.0 mV is applied throughout the device with a range of frequencies starting at 0.01 Hz that is manually cycled through each decade up until 100 kHz. For each data point in between decades, a complex current will be recorded through the lock-in amplifier, that is composed of real and imaginary components of the current. The lock-in amplifier is connected to a computer where a program in LabView is used to record both components of the current where it is then calculated in terms of impedance, both real and imaginary.

When taking data, it is important to take note of different factors. First, ensure that the lock-in amplifier is on the correct sensitivity. If one is not on the correct value of sensitivity, it can alter the data by some degree. Second, make sure that the time constant is correct. For example, let's say the frequency is a 0.01 Hz, the time constant should at least be at a time constant of 300 seconds. The time constant is the number of seconds needed to complete one period. However, in order to record an accurate set of data, the signal needs to average itself out. To do that, add, at least, another power of ten to the time constant to make sure that the signal has time to do so. When reaching the decade of frequency in the kilohertz range, the data collection should be much faster.

The Electrolytes and their Concentrations

Throughout the experiment, we will be using a range of electrolytes.



Figure 10: The electrolyte concentrations, (a) distilled water, (b) 0.05 mM, (c) 0.50 mM, (d) 5.00 mM, (e) 50.0 mM, (f) 500 mM. All of which consist of potassium phosphate (KH₂PO₄).

These are the solutions that were used throughout the experiment. Keep in mind that sodium chloride (NaCl), table salt, works the same way as potassium phosphate. In order to properly obtain these concentrations, basic chemistry has been applied^[7],

$$n = \frac{M}{V}.$$
(9)

The variable of M denotes the moles of the solute, V is the volume of the solution. When dividing the two together, the molarity, n, is found. Note that one should create their highest concentrated electrolyte first so that it can easily be diluted with distilled water.

Diluting the solution to obtain the weaker concentrations is rather simple by using solution stoichiometry^[8],

$$n_1 V_1 = n_2 V_2. (10)$$

The molarity of the initial electrolyte, n_1 , should be the strongest concentration that has been created. The goal is to find the final molarity, n_2 , that is needed with a reasonable final volume V_2 . In order to do this, one must choose a reasonable volume of the initial electrolyte V_1 ,

$$V_1 = \frac{n_2 V_2}{n_1}$$
(11)

From this, the amount of distilled water needed to create the diluted solution comes out to be the difference between the initial and final solution volumes,

$$V_{water} = V_2 - V_1.$$
 (12)

In general, the reason why an electrolyte is used is because the signal from the lockin amplifier can easily travel through an electrolyte due to the ions that allow an electrical current to flow through. This will then be applied to the circuit constructed from the model, which will potentially give us resistor and capacitor values at different concentrations of electrolytes.

III. Theory

Impedance of the Model through the Lock-In Amplifier

The lock-in amplifier will be used to record data for the first half of the experiment, we must find an equation that represents the measured data from the lock-in itself. With the equations, the main priority is to find the complex impedance, Z, with respect to the measured current, I, over the device with a voltage, V.

$$Z = \frac{V}{I} \tag{13}$$

From the experimental methods section, we know that the lock-in amplifier has an AC signal output, v(t), of a simple sine wave from Eq. 6 that consists of^[9],

$$v(t) = V_L \sin(\omega t) \tag{14}$$

where V_L is the amplitude of the signal produced from the lock-in amplifier.

Since the current changes over time, I(t), due to this wave, we can break up the current into its real, I_x , and imaginary components, I_y ,

$$I(t) = I_x \cos(\omega t) + I_y \sin(\omega t) \tag{15}$$

Phasors is what makes the current complex^[10]. This current is shown through a sinusoidal function. By observing the wave functions of sine and cosine, cosine waves correspond to the real current while the sine wave correspond to the imaginary. This means that cosine waves are in-phase while the sine waves are out-of-phase. A simple trigonometric identity explains a cosine wave of $cos(\omega t)$ is equal to a sine wave with a phase shift that consists $ofsin(\omega t + \Theta)$ where the value for the phase shift, is $\pi/2$.

By plugging in the alternating current from Eq. 15 into the impedance from Eq. 13,

$$Z = \frac{V}{(I_x + jI_y)}.$$
(16)

where j represents an imaginary number,

$$j = \sqrt{-1}.\tag{17}$$

This shows that the impedance is dependent on a real and imaginary current that is within the signal. Since there is a real and imaginary current, there has to be a real and imaginary impedance. We now simplify Eq. 16 into two separate equations that will be able to justify the real and imaginary impedance that is dependent on the current. We get this by multiplying Eq. 16 by its complex conjugate,

$$Z = \frac{V(I_x - jI_y)}{(I_x^2 + I_y^2)}$$
(18)

Now that there is no imaginary number that resides in the denominator, we can now separate the equation into terms of its real and imaginary values. By doing so,

$$Z_{total} = \frac{V(I_x)}{(I_x^2 + I_y^2)} - \frac{V(jI_y)}{(I_x^2 + I_y^2)}.$$
(19)

Note that the sum of the real, Z_x , and imaginary, Z_y , impedances is equal to the total, Z_{total} ,

$$Z_{total} = Z_x + jZ_y \tag{20}$$

Eq. 19 is the measured impedance from the lock-in amplifier that uses the real and imaginary current.

Measuring the Impedance of the Electric Double Layer Circuit

We will now directly observe the double layer circuit (Fig. 3) and as mentioned in the introduction, the double layer circuit consists of a resistor and capacitor in parallel in series with an external resistance. Looking back at the lock-in amplifier scenario for finding impedance, we can assume that there will be two impedance components and from there a complex impedance will be distinguished into each component within the double electric circuit.

The resistance is modeled from a redox reaction because of electron conversion into an ion in between the probe and an electrolyte. Since the resistance is considered a real value, according to a brief explanation of phasors early in the theory section, the resistance is in-phase with the current and the voltage which can be written as^[11],

$$Z_x = Z_r = R. (21)$$

where Z_x is the real impedance and Z_r is the impedance of the resistor.

The second component within this system is the capacitor. The capacitance is dependent on frequency which will ultimately change the capacitance when measuring at different frequencies. If the current and the voltage are implemented in a sinusoidal wave, we can determine that,

$$Z_y = Z_c = \frac{1}{j\omega C}.$$
(22)

where Z_y is the imaginary impedance, Z_c is the impedance of the capacitor.

The impedance of a capacitor is purely an imaginary number from Eq. $17^{[11]}$,

Now that we were able to distinguish impedance equations from both the resistance and the capacitance within the double layer circuit, everything can be put together. First factor that is noticed is that there is a resistor and capacitor in series with an external resistance. From this we can generate an equation^[12],

$$Z_{total} = R_s + \frac{R}{1 + j\omega RC}.$$
(23)

Looking back at Eq. 19, the impedance will need to be separated into terms of its real and imaginary components, by performing a derivation of Eq. 23 and plugging into Eq. 20,

$$Z_{total} = R_s + \frac{R}{(1 + \omega^2 R^2 C^2)} - \frac{j\omega R^2 C}{(1 + \omega^2 R^2 C^2)}$$
(24)

Now that we have a set of equations we can say that Eq. 19 will be used for measuring the complex current through the lock-in to find impedance, whereas Eq. 24 will used to calculate the impedance from the values of the resistance and capacitance within the double layer circuit. By using the data from the lock-in amplifier and device, (Fig. 7 and 9), we can calculate specific values for the resistance and capacitance within the double layer circuit (Fig. 3) and compare the two together.

IV. Results and Analysis

The Controlled System

This first section will be focused on a controlled system which will consist of a physical resistor and capacitor in parallel. Since the test circuit only consists of these two components we may consider the external resistance negligible only for this case. However, this is subject to change once we begin analyzing the data.



Figure 11: A resistor and capacitor in parallel that represents the double layer circuit, (a) $R = 108 \text{ k}\Omega$, (b) = 300 pF

This will be the backbone of the entire series of data collection. We will find the specific values of resistance and capacitance for the controlled system that will match that of the future data at different concentrations.



Figure 12: Plot of Z_x and Z_y versus frequency for a test circuit with component values of $R = 108 \text{ k}\Omega$ and C = 300 pF

Here is the controlled data with a fixed value of $108 \text{ k}\Omega$ for the resistance and 300 pF for the capacitance. The real impedance is represented through a blue-scattered plot while the imaginary is represented through an orange-scattered plot. The best-fit solid lines is used to find values for the resistance and capacitance. Since the two plots match fairly well together, the values of the components are accurate representations. In this scenario, the frequency range peaked up to 100 kHz because there was not enough points to justify the data. When observing an electrolyte, the maximum recorded frequency will be 10.0 kHz. The best-fit line is what will be focused on the most.

Keep in mind that the best-fit line resembles Eq. 24 and the scattered plot resembles Eq. 19.



Electrolyte Concentration of Distilled Water

Figure 13: Plot of impedance versus frequency for distilled water. Solid line is best-fit with $R = 500 \text{ k}\Omega$, $C = 1.20 \mu F$, and $R_s = 12.0 \text{ k}\Omega$

Electrolyte Concentration of 0.05 mM



Figure 14: Plot of impedance versus frequency for a 0.05 mM concentration. Solid line is best-fit with $R = 475 \text{ k}\Omega$, $C = 1.50 \mu\text{F}$, and $R_s = 15.0 \text{ k}\Omega$



Electrolyte Concentration of 0.50 mM

Figure 15: Plot of impedance versus frequency for a 0.50 mM concentration. Solid line is best-fit with $R = 485 \text{ k}\Omega$, $C = 1.90 \mu F$, and $R_s = 15.0 \text{ k}\Omega$

Electrolyte Concentration of 5.00 mM



Figure 16: Plot of impedance versus frequency for a 5.00 mM concentration. Solid line is best-fit with $R = 285 \text{ k}\Omega$, $C = 1.70 \mu F$, and $R_s = 11.0 \text{ k}\Omega$



Electrolyte Concentration of 50.0 mM

Figure 17: Plot of impedance versus frequency for a 50.0 mM concentration. Solid line is best-fit with $R = 410 \text{ k}\Omega$, $C = 1.75 \mu F$, and $R_s = 11.0 \text{ k}\Omega$

Electrolyte Concentration of 500 mM



Figure 18: Plot of impedance versus frequency for a 500 mM concentration. Solid line is best-fit with $R = 300 \text{ k}\Omega$, $C = 2.70 \mu F$, and $R_s = 11.0 \text{ k}\Omega$

Data Summarization of the Electrolytes

The first set of data (Fig. 13) represents distilled water. When comparing the theory to the data, we can say that the lines seem to match up fairly well. We can now figure out specific values for the resistor and capacitor in the double layer circuit. The resistance in the first set has an approximated value of 521 k Ω , and an approximated capacitance value of 1.20 μ F. We also can make out that the external resistance has a value of 15.0 k Ω .

As explained before, the external resistance was subject to change. When comparing this data set to the controlled test circuit, there appears to be an external resistance, hence the gap between the two scattered plots in most of the graphs. We will be discussing this slightly more in-depth in the conclusion.

The second data set (Fig. 14) represents an electrolyte concentration of 0.05 mM. From this graph, we were able to approximate 500 k Ω for the effective resistance and 1.50 μ F for the value of the capacitance. The external resistance has a value of 13.0 k Ω . When looking at the best-fit line, the values used give accurate representations of the component values.

The third data set (Fig. 15) is a visual representation of 0.50 mM of an electrolyte. The values that were approximated resulted in 375 k Ω for the resistance and 2.00 μ F for the capacitance. The external resistance as a value of 13.5 k Ω . When comparing the other graphs to this, we can make out that the impedance is lower than those of a 0.05 mM concentration and distilled water. For now, we will be observing other concentrations to see if this trend continues.

The fourth data set (Fig. 16) represents an electrolyte concentration of 5.00 mM. The approximated effective resistance is 615 k Ω and the effective capacitance is 0.90 μ F. The resistor and capacitor are then in series with an external resistor that is approximated at 10.0 k Ω . From here, the theory and the data seem to be fitting nicely together showing that these values are near their exact values.

The fifth data set (Fig. 17) represents 50.0 mM of an electrolyte concentration. Within this data set there is an approximation for both the resistance and capacitance which are 400 k Ω and 1.75 μ F, respectively. When comparing the theoretical data with the experimental, the trend between the two seem to be closely related to each other.

So far, within all of the concentrations, the values for the resistance and capacitance has been decently leveled. All of the theoretical data has matched up with the experiment in some way. This currently means that the theory and the experiment have some correlation to each other. The only way to confirm this is to test more concentrations.

The last set of data (Fig. 18) represents a concentration of 500 mM, which is the highest concentration is in use. From here, we approximated values of 300 k Ω for the resistance and 3.00 μ F for the approximation of the capacitance. The external resistor has a value of 7.50 k Ω . The theoretical data in contrast to the experimental data seems to be matching fairly well together when looking at the current trend in the data itself.

Now that all of the data has been stated and briefly described, we can make out a few factors. First, all the approximations for the capacitance in each of the concentrations seems to be in the same general range. In terms of consistency, the capacitance does not seem to be changing by too much. Second, the resistors within the double layer circuit do not follow a trend, but a couple of resistances vary from the others. The concentrations of 0.50 mM and 500 mM have approximated values less than 400 k Ω . However, these concentrations still follow the same trend impedance values when comparing the two to the other concentrations.

As stated before, the external resistance would be considered negligible in a test circuit. As we increase the value of the external resistance, the slope of the best-fit line will begin to even out. In other words, if the external resistance were to match to that of the resistance in the double layer, the data will output constant values for the impedance in both the real and imaginary components.



Resistance and Capacitance of each Electrolyte Concentration

Figure 19: Resistance versus molarity concentration



Figure 20: External resistance versus molarity concentration



Figure 21: Capacitance versus molarity concentration



Figure 22: External resistance versus molarity concentration

The data that represents the resistance (Fig. 19) shows us that it is nearly constant throughout all of the concentrations used on a logarithmic scale, when converted into linear values, the resistance will exponentially decrease as the molarity increases. The external resistance (Fig. 20) behaves in a similar manner.

The data that represents the capacitance (Fig. 21) shows us that it will increase constantly throughout all concentrations on a logarithmic scale. When converted into linear values, the capacitance will increase exponentially as the concentration increases.

V. Conclusion and Future Work

The goal for this experiment was to calculate values for the resistance and the capacitance of a given electrolyte solution. There were two main equations that were derived from different perspectives. One from the data of the experiment and the other from a physical circuit. By taking the two equations and working with them as one, we were able to generate the given data.

The data for the resistance involves an exponential decrease while the capacitance involves an exponential increase. The reason for this is because as the concentrations increase, the number of ions that are within the solution also increase. In other words, when there are more ions in an electrolyte, this allows the current to flow at a greater magnitude, which generates a higher charge value, which also means that this will increase the overall capacitance as the concentration increases. This is where the concept of screening length is applied (Fig. 5).

When looking back at the introduction for the definition of resistance, we know that a resistor reduces the electrical current flowing through the system, so if there is an increase in current, this could only mean that the overall resistance will decrease as the concentration increases.

Considering that an electrolyte is a basic biological organism that can be controlled, one could possibly expand this research in many ways. Since this is only involves metal-to-liquid contact, one could expand to different types of materials to see if it will alter the current findings within this research.

Another form of potential research is that one could change multiple aspects to this experiment such as: gap width between the probes, higher concentrated electrolytes, higher frequencies, and a larger volume of solution. All these factors can alter this current data in some way if these were to be used within this experiment.

References

- Romero, M. R., Ahumada, F., Garay, F., and Baruzzi, A. M. (2010). Amperometric Biosensor for Direct Blood Lactate Detection. Analytical Chemistry Anal. Chem., 82(13), 5568-5572. doi:10.1021/ac1004426
- [2] Robinson, D. (1968). The Electrical Properties of Metal Microelectrodes. Proceedings of the IEEE Proc. IEEE, 56(6), 1065-1071. doi:10.1109/proc.1968.6458
- [3] Bodner, G. M., and Rickard, L. H. (1993). Common Oxidation Reduction Reactions. Chemistry: Structure and Dynamics. By James N. Spencer. 5th ed. USA: John and Wiley Sons.
- [4] Hambley, A. R. (2014). Capacitance. Electrical Engineering: Principles and Applications. 6th ed. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education.
- [5] Hambley, A. R. (2014). Physical Characteristics of Capacitors. Electrical Engineering: Principles and Applications. 6th ed. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education.
- [6] What is a Lock-In Amplifier. (1993). InModel SR830 DSP Lock-In Amplifier(pp. 3-1-2). Sunnyvale, CA: Stanford Research Systems.
- [7] Bodner, G. M., and Rickard, L. H. (2011). Molarity as a Way to Count Particles in a Solution.Chemistry: Structure and Dynamics. By James N. Spencer. 5th ed. USA: John and Wiley Sons.
- [8] Modner, G. M., and Rickard, L. H. (1993). Solution Stoichiometry. Chemistry: Structure and Dynamics. By James N. Spencer. 5th ed. USA: John and Wiley Sons.
- [9] Hambley, A. R. (2014). Sinusoidal Currents and Voltages. Electrical Engineering: Principles and Applications. 6th ed. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education.
- [10] Hambley, Allan R. "Phasors." Electrical Engineering: Principles and Applications. 6th ed. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education, 2014. 216-21. Print.
- [11] Hambley, A. R. (2014). Complex Impedances. Electrical Engineering: Principles and Applications. 6th ed. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Education.
- [12] Gesteland, R., Howland, B., Lettvin, J., and Pitts, W. (1959). Comments on Microelectrodes.Proceedings of the IRE Proc. IRE,47(11), 1856-1862. doi:10.1109/jrproc.1959.287156

VII. Acknowledgements

First, I would like to thank Dr. Michael Crosser for patiently helping me through all of the extended mathematical circuitry behind my experiment. Without him, I would not have been able to acquire the information I needed in order to receive accurate data that I could understand. This is my first year and last year having you as a professor, but it was great working with you over the year.

I would like to thank Dr. Jennifer Heath. When I took Circuits and Electronics with you, twice, I really enjoyed both semesters of the class. I may have had difficulties when it came to understanding all the bits and pieces that the circuits class had to offer, but I did learn a lot during the process, which sparked my interest of working with circuits in my thesis, which may potentially strive me to work with the subject after my Linfield college career.

I would also like to thank the members of my committee, Dr. Tianbao Xie and Dr. William Mackie. Dr. Tianbao Xie, you have been a great help throughout my college career and I could not thank you enough for your time and patience you have both inside and outside of class. Dr. William Mackie, since the day I took the physics introductory classes as well as Modern Physics with you, I have always admired the way you taught a class because I, personally, understood most of the information that you present during your lectures.

I'd like to thank my faculty advisor, Dr. Joelle Murray. I originally was not one of your advisees. Since my first semester as a freshman here at Linfield, having Inquiry Seminar with you helped me find the right advisor. Throughout my journey of changing my field of study from computer science to applied physics, I knew you would be a great advisor for when the switch took place. You also helped me understand LATEX both in computational physics and during my thesis. I plan on using LATEX even after I graduate from Linfield.

Last, but definitely not least, I'd like to thank two of my high school teachers, Dr. Jeff Kozak and James Massaro. If it were not for Dr. Kozak, I would have not considered studying physics. Back in Island School, I took both normal level physics and honors physics with you, and I really enjoyed it. Your after school physics sessions really helped me understand everything during the time you taught the classes. Your optimistic mindset you have when it comes to the subject is what also influenced me to proceed with this field of study as well. Mr. Massaro, over the four years back in Island School, you also have had a huge impact with my future. The island-wide robotics team was a great, hands-on approach for when it came to learning something new, regardless of what it covered specifically. I am glad to have been a part of robotics for the four years that I have participated and I wish I could have taken the opportunity into mentoring the younger generation. If it were not for you and Dr. Kozak, I would not have been so eager to study a STEM science as a career choice. Thank you and thank you everyone else for all the help I have received over the years.

Appendix

Block Diagram of Lock-in Amplifier

